
Mark Saccoccio 
Town Clerk 

  01525 631920
   info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

Council Chamber, The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, Bedfordshire, LU7 1HD

13 May 2019

To:  The Town Mayor and all Members of Leighton-Linslade Town Council

NOTICE OF MEETING

You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of Leighton-Linslade Town Council to 
be held on Monday, 20 May 2019 commencing at 7.30 pm in the Astral Park Sports 
& Community Centre, Johnson Drive, Leighton Buzzard, Bedfordshire, LU7 4AY.

M Saccoccio
Town Clerk

AGENDA

1.  ELECTION OF CHAIR (TOWN MAYOR) (Pages 1 - 6)

To elect a Town Mayor for the ensuing year (Protocol for Mayor attached).

2.  DECLARATION OF ACCEPTANCE OF OFFICE (Pages 7 - 8)

The newly elected Town Mayor will make the Declaration of Acceptance of 
Office (attached).

3.  TOWN MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 

4.  VOTE OF THANKS TO RETIRING MAYOR 

5.  RESPONSE BY RETIRING MAYOR 

6.  ELECTION OF VICE CHAIR (DEPUTY TOWN MAYOR) (Pages 9 - 14)

To elect a Deputy Town Mayor for the ensuing year (Protocol attached).

7.  DECLARATION OF ACCEPTANCE OF OFFICE (Pages 15 - 16)

The newly elected Deputy Town Mayor will make the Declaration of 
Acceptance of Office (attached).

Public Document Pack

mailto:info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
http://www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk/


LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL Monday, 20 May 2019

8.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Schedule 12 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires a record be kept of the 
Members present and that this record form part of the minutes of the meeting. 
Members who cannot attend a meeting should tender apologies to the Town 
Clerk.

9.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

(i) Under the Localism Act 2011 (sections 26-37 and Schedule 4) and in 
accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, Members are required to 
declare any interests which are not currently entered in the Member’s 
Register of Interests or if he/she has not notified the Monitoring Officer of it. 

(ii) Should any Member have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in an item on 
the agenda, the Member may not participate in consideration of that item 
unless a Dispensation has first been requested (in writing) and granted by 
the Council (see Dispensation Procedure).

10.  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 17 - 24)

To receive and approve as a correct record the Minutes of the Council Meeting 
held on 29 April 2019 (attached).

11.  LEADER OF THE COUNCIL (Pages 25 - 28)

To elect a Councillor to be Leader of the Council (Protocol for Leader is 
attached).

12.  GROUP LEADERS 

To announce the Leaders and Deputy Leaders of the political groups 
represented on the Council.

13.  GROUP LEADERS' ANNOUNCEMENTS 

14.  QUESTIONS 

(a) To receive questions and statements from members of the public as 
provided for in Standing Order Nos. 3 (f) and 3 (g)  

(b) To receive questions from Councillors as provided for in Standing Order 
No. 27, provided three clear days’ notice of the question has been given to 
the person to whom it is addressed.



LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL Monday, 20 May 2019

15.  COMMITTEE STRUCTURE, TERMS OF REFERENCE AND SCHEME OF 
DELEGATION (Pages 29 - 40)

(a) To agree the main Committee structure for the ensuing year (existing 
structure attached).

(b) To appoint members to the standing Committees and Sub-Committees. 

(c) To appoint Chairs to standing Committees and to consider appointing 
Chairs to Sub-Committees.

(d) To agree the Terms of Reference for each standing Committee (current 
Terms of Reference attached).
Note: at the first meeting of each main Committee, the Terms of Reference for 
Sub-Committees will be considered. 

(e)  To agree the Scheme of Delegation (current Scheme attached).

(f)  To consider any changes to the 2019-2020 Calendar of Meetings 
(attached). 

16.  PARTNERSHIP COMMITTEE (Pages 41 - 42)

To appoint five Town Councillors to join the Partnership Committee for the 
ensuing year.  Five Councillors will also be appointed by Central Bedfordshire 
Council to the Committee (current Terms of Reference attached). 

(Note: the committee Chair will be elected at the first meeting of the 
Committee)

17.  APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES (Pages 43 - 44)

To review representation on or work with external bodies (existing 
representation attached).

18.  GENERAL POWER OF COMPETENCE (Pages 45 - 48)

(a) To consider whether the Council meets the Power of General 
Competence eligibility criteria contained in Section 1 of the Localism Act 
2011.  The Parish Councils (General Power of Competence) (Prescribed 
Conditions) Order 2012 bringing the provisions into effect was made on 
27 March 2012 (attached).  

(b) Subject to (a) above, to pass the relevant resolution that the Town 
Council is eligible to use the Power of General Competence.

REFRESHMENTS WILL BE SERVED AFTER THE MEETING



This page is intentionally left blank



LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL

TOWN MAYOR AND DEPUTY MAYOR PROTOCOL

The Mayoralty is a position which gives the opportunity to promote and uphold 
the special character of Leighton-Linslade.   The following points are laid 
down and should be read in conjunction with the agreed Councillor and 
Officer Protocol and Town Council Standing Orders.

The role and duties of the Town Mayor

1 The Town Mayor and Deputy Mayor are elected Members of the 
Council and legally are Town Councillors bound by any national 
legislation enacted from time and time and any related local code.

2 The Mayor and Deputy Mayor have no additional powers, unless 
specified in statute, other than those attributed to being a Town 
Councillor.

3 The Mayor, once elected at the Annual General Meeting of the Town 
Council, should normally hold Office until the Annual General Meeting 
the following year.

4 The Mayor will preside over Full Council Meetings, dates for which will 
be set out in the Town Council Calendar of Meetings

5 The Mayor will meet with the Town Clerk prior to Full Council meetings 
to discuss the Agenda and Mayor’s Announcements.

6 The Mayor should observe the strictest neutrality and impartiality at all 
times when carrying out Mayoral and/or civic duties. This is particularly 
important during debate at Full Council, although he/she is entitled to 
use an original vote when available and is required to make a casting 
vote when necessary, in any manner he/she may choose.  

7 The Mayor may designate a Mayoress or Consort as appropriate.

8 The Mayor may choose to support a named charity (or charities) 
throughout his/her year of office.

9 The Mayor will be known as either “Mr Mayor” or “Madam Mayor” and 
have their name preceded by the word “Councillor”.

10 The Mayor shall be known as the Town Mayor of Leighton-Linslade 
and regarded as the first citizen of the Town.

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



11 The Mayor will preside at the Parish Meeting (in accordance with the 
legislation).

ENGAGEMENTS

12 The Mayor receives invitations to engagements throughout the year 
and attends these wearing the Chain of Office, if appropriate.

13 All engagements should be co-ordinated through the Office and will be 
dealt with by the Mayor’s Secretary.

14 The Mayor’s Secretary is not responsible for, nor should respond to, 
any correspondence of a personal nature or to that relating to “Ward” 
business.

15 The Mayor may on occasions receive Mayoral mail or e-mail at his/her 
own home.  If this should happen, it is to be forwarded to the Mayor’s 
Secretary for response.

16 The Mayor’s Secretary will keep the Mayor’s Diary of official 
engagements and keep the Mayor updated with new events.

17 The Mayor’s Secretary will keep a list of all official engagements and 
notify the Mayor accordingly (i.e. weekly). These will be reported on a 
weekly basis in the Members’ Newsletter.

 
18 The Mayor or Deputy Mayor will arrange a mutually convenient time to 

meet with the Mayor’s Secretary (and Line Manager, if deemed 
appropriate) on a regular basis to discuss engagements.

19 As required by the Mayor, the Mayor’s secretary will write personal 
notes of thanks for those engagements he/she has attended.   This 
mail will be posted from the Office at the cost of the Town Council.  

20 The Mayor or Deputy Mayor should not normally accept engagements 
outside of the county of Bedfordshire unless they are of a civic nature 
or from another civic body.  The Town Clerk should be consulted in 
cases of doubt.

21 If the Mayor and Deputy Mayor are present at a non-Town Council 
event, the Mayor takes precedence and shall wear his/her Chain of 
Office.  In this case, the Deputy Mayor shall not wear his/her 
Badge/Chain of Office.  At Town Council events e.g. Civic Service, 
Mayor’s fund-raising events, Remembrance Service, the Deputy Mayor 
may wear his/her Chain of Office.

22 The Mayor or Deputy Mayor may not wear his/her Chain of Office at an 
engagement outside of Leighton-Linslade without the express 
permission of the Chair of that Parish, Town, District or Unitary area 
(such permission to be sought by the Mayor’s Secretary).

23 If the Mayor is unable to accept an invitation, the Deputy Mayor shall 
be invited to attend (unless it is clearly inappropriate from the 

Page 2



invitation).  If the Deputy Mayor is also unable to attend, the Mayor’s 
Secretary should consult the inviting organisation, to ask if they would 
wish another Councillor to attend.

CIVIC

24 The Mayor should only wear his/her Chain of Office when undertaking 
official duties as Mayor.

25 The Mayoress/Mayor’s Consort may only wear his/her Badge of Office 
while accompanying the Mayor or attending an event in his/her own 
right.

26 The Deputy Mayor may only wear his/her Chain of Office in the 
absence of the Mayor when deputising for him/her at an official 
engagement, or at Parish events as detailed in 21 above.

27 Attendance by the Town Mayor’s Secretary at Mayoral and civic events 
is expected where possible and practicable. Where such events take 
place outside the postholder’s normal working hours, reimbursement 
by way of overtime or time off in lieu will be by agreement of the Town 
Clerk. 

28 The Lord Lieutenant or Deputy Lieutenant, when attending a function 
or event in an official capacity representing the Crown, takes 
precedence over the Mayor.

29 The Mayor shall have use of the Council Chamber and Meeting Room, 
if available, following prior arrangement with the General Office.

30 Access to the Council Chamber and Meeting Room, out of office hours, 
should be avoided if possible, but if unavoidable must be pre booked 
with the General Office. Such access will be subject to the availability 
of an officer, on a voluntary basis, to open and close the building.

31 The Mayor may use the Council Chamber and Meeting Room to host 
meetings with organisations of the Town or meet with the Mayor’s 
Secretary to discuss engagements and events.

32 The Town Council shall be responsible for the insurance of the 
Council’s civic regalia.  However, it is the responsibility of the Mayor 
and Deputy Mayor to ensure that they comply with home/car security 
and other requirements set out within the Town Council’s insurance 
policy from time to time.

33 The Mayor shall receive an annual mayoral allowance as specified in 
the budget for the year.  The Mayor is advised to operate a separate 
personal account for this allowance and to keep a record of all 
expenditure for tax purposes.

34 The Mayor, on taking office, shall receive a copy of this Protocol and 
other relevant documents.

Page 3



35 The Town Council will meet the cost of various administrative Mayoral 
expenses, as determined by the Policy and Finance Committee, being 
in accordance with the Council’s approved budget. 1

GENERAL

36 The Mayor will present certificates to Honorary Burgess recipients, if 
applicable.

37 The Mayor may receive gifts occasionally during his/her term of office. 
These gifts may be of a personal nature in which case they may be 
retained by the Mayor (and need to be declared in accordance with the 
Code of Conduct), but others that are obviously for the Town must be 
handed to the Town Clerk.

38 All guests visiting the White House must be invited to sign the Visitors 
Book and advised that only limited car parking spaces are available.

39 The Mayor and Deputy Mayor should inform the Mayor’s Secretary, as 
early as possible, of any dates when they are not free to undertake 
engagements.

40 The Mayor’s Secretary should be informed of any special 
circumstances that may affect the Mayor’s attendance or enjoyment of 
an engagement e.g. allergies, dietary requirements, disability 
restrictions.

41 Matters regarding protocol or of a general concern to the Mayor can be 
discussed, in the first instance, with the Mayor’s Secretary or the Town 
Clerk

42 The Mayor will operate an account for the use of the Mayor’s Charities. 
The signatories of the account will be the Mayor and the Town Clerk 
who will co-operate in any handover to any successor(s).   
 

43 If any need to interpret this Protocol arises, it should be referred to the 
Town Clerk for a ruling in the first instance and afterwards to the 
relevant Committee.

FUNDRAISING EVENTS

44 As agreed by the Policy and Finance Committee in November 2014, 
the Mayor shall be entitled to three free uses of Town Council owned 
buildings/facilities during each municipal year, for the purposes of 
holding charity fundraising events. This applies only to hire of the 
facility; normal charges would apply for other services such as catering, 
bar, etc. 

45 To avoid the loss of income opportunity, the Mayor shall confirm the 
date of such uses no later than 30 June each year. 

1 To be produced and agreed.

Page 4



46 Should an occasion arise when payment for hire still applies, the 
charges will be at the lower community group rate, where applicable.

47 The Mayor will liaise with the Town Mayor’s Secretary to develop a 
plan of charity fundraising events for the year, as early as possible 
during his/her term of office. This allows sufficient time for booking of 
venues or suppliers, as well as the development of suitable marketing 
material.

48 The number of charity fundraising events held each municipal year will 
vary depending on the availability of each Mayor.  However, it is 
broadly anticipated that no less than six and no more than twelve (one 
per calendar month) events will be hosted by the Mayor during the 
year. 

49 Where there is insufficient budget for marketing of Mayoral fundraising 
events, the expectation is that, should external services be required for 
marketing purposes (e.g. the production of a banner), that these costs 
will be met from the income generated from the event or from the 
Mayoral allowance. 

Approved by the Policy & Finance Committee 16.01.2017
Amendment to Point 49 endorsed by Council 30.01.2017

5 of 5

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



DDEECCLLAARRAATTIIOONN  OOFF  AACCCCEEPPTTAANNCCEE  OOFF  OOFFFFIICCEE  

I, ____________________________________, having been elected 
to the office of Town Mayor of Leighton-Linslade Town Council 
declare that I take that office upon myself, and will duly and 
faithfully fulfil the duties of it according to the best of my judgement 
and ability.

I undertake to observe the Code of Conduct which is expected of all 
members of Leighton-Linslade Town Council. 

Signed : ___________________________________

Date: _____________________________________

This declaration was made and signed before me.

Signed : ___________________________________

Mark Saccoccio
Proper Officer of the Council                                                                 

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL

TOWN MAYOR AND DEPUTY MAYOR PROTOCOL

The Mayoralty is a position which gives the opportunity to promote and uphold 
the special character of Leighton-Linslade.   The following points are laid 
down and should be read in conjunction with the agreed Councillor and 
Officer Protocol and Town Council Standing Orders.

The role and duties of the Town Mayor

1 The Town Mayor and Deputy Mayor are elected Members of the 
Council and legally are Town Councillors bound by any national 
legislation enacted from time and time and any related local code.

2 The Mayor and Deputy Mayor have no additional powers, unless 
specified in statute, other than those attributed to being a Town 
Councillor.

3 The Mayor, once elected at the Annual General Meeting of the Town 
Council, should normally hold Office until the Annual General Meeting 
the following year.

4 The Mayor will preside over Full Council Meetings, dates for which will 
be set out in the Town Council Calendar of Meetings

5 The Mayor will meet with the Town Clerk prior to Full Council meetings 
to discuss the Agenda and Mayor’s Announcements.

6 The Mayor should observe the strictest neutrality and impartiality at all 
times when carrying out Mayoral and/or civic duties. This is particularly 
important during debate at Full Council, although he/she is entitled to 
use an original vote when available and is required to make a casting 
vote when necessary, in any manner he/she may choose.  

7 The Mayor may designate a Mayoress or Consort as appropriate.

8 The Mayor may choose to support a named charity (or charities) 
throughout his/her year of office.

9 The Mayor will be known as either “Mr Mayor” or “Madam Mayor” and 
have their name preceded by the word “Councillor”.

10 The Mayor shall be known as the Town Mayor of Leighton-Linslade 
and regarded as the first citizen of the Town.

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



11 The Mayor will preside at the Parish Meeting (in accordance with the 
legislation).

ENGAGEMENTS

12 The Mayor receives invitations to engagements throughout the year 
and attends these wearing the Chain of Office, if appropriate.

13 All engagements should be co-ordinated through the Office and will be 
dealt with by the Mayor’s Secretary.

14 The Mayor’s Secretary is not responsible for, nor should respond to, 
any correspondence of a personal nature or to that relating to “Ward” 
business.

15 The Mayor may on occasions receive Mayoral mail or e-mail at his/her 
own home.  If this should happen, it is to be forwarded to the Mayor’s 
Secretary for response.

16 The Mayor’s Secretary will keep the Mayor’s Diary of official 
engagements and keep the Mayor updated with new events.

17 The Mayor’s Secretary will keep a list of all official engagements and 
notify the Mayor accordingly (i.e. weekly). These will be reported on a 
weekly basis in the Members’ Newsletter.

 
18 The Mayor or Deputy Mayor will arrange a mutually convenient time to 

meet with the Mayor’s Secretary (and Line Manager, if deemed 
appropriate) on a regular basis to discuss engagements.

19 As required by the Mayor, the Mayor’s secretary will write personal 
notes of thanks for those engagements he/she has attended.   This 
mail will be posted from the Office at the cost of the Town Council.  

20 The Mayor or Deputy Mayor should not normally accept engagements 
outside of the county of Bedfordshire unless they are of a civic nature 
or from another civic body.  The Town Clerk should be consulted in 
cases of doubt.

21 If the Mayor and Deputy Mayor are present at a non-Town Council 
event, the Mayor takes precedence and shall wear his/her Chain of 
Office.  In this case, the Deputy Mayor shall not wear his/her 
Badge/Chain of Office.  At Town Council events e.g. Civic Service, 
Mayor’s fund-raising events, Remembrance Service, the Deputy Mayor 
may wear his/her Chain of Office.

22 The Mayor or Deputy Mayor may not wear his/her Chain of Office at an 
engagement outside of Leighton-Linslade without the express 
permission of the Chair of that Parish, Town, District or Unitary area 
(such permission to be sought by the Mayor’s Secretary).

23 If the Mayor is unable to accept an invitation, the Deputy Mayor shall 
be invited to attend (unless it is clearly inappropriate from the 

Page 10



invitation).  If the Deputy Mayor is also unable to attend, the Mayor’s 
Secretary should consult the inviting organisation, to ask if they would 
wish another Councillor to attend.

CIVIC

24 The Mayor should only wear his/her Chain of Office when undertaking 
official duties as Mayor.

25 The Mayoress/Mayor’s Consort may only wear his/her Badge of Office 
while accompanying the Mayor or attending an event in his/her own 
right.

26 The Deputy Mayor may only wear his/her Chain of Office in the 
absence of the Mayor when deputising for him/her at an official 
engagement, or at Parish events as detailed in 21 above.

27 Attendance by the Town Mayor’s Secretary at Mayoral and civic events 
is expected where possible and practicable. Where such events take 
place outside the postholder’s normal working hours, reimbursement 
by way of overtime or time off in lieu will be by agreement of the Town 
Clerk. 

28 The Lord Lieutenant or Deputy Lieutenant, when attending a function 
or event in an official capacity representing the Crown, takes 
precedence over the Mayor.

29 The Mayor shall have use of the Council Chamber and Meeting Room, 
if available, following prior arrangement with the General Office.

30 Access to the Council Chamber and Meeting Room, out of office hours, 
should be avoided if possible, but if unavoidable must be pre booked 
with the General Office. Such access will be subject to the availability 
of an officer, on a voluntary basis, to open and close the building.

31 The Mayor may use the Council Chamber and Meeting Room to host 
meetings with organisations of the Town or meet with the Mayor’s 
Secretary to discuss engagements and events.

32 The Town Council shall be responsible for the insurance of the 
Council’s civic regalia.  However, it is the responsibility of the Mayor 
and Deputy Mayor to ensure that they comply with home/car security 
and other requirements set out within the Town Council’s insurance 
policy from time to time.

33 The Mayor shall receive an annual mayoral allowance as specified in 
the budget for the year.  The Mayor is advised to operate a separate 
personal account for this allowance and to keep a record of all 
expenditure for tax purposes.

34 The Mayor, on taking office, shall receive a copy of this Protocol and 
other relevant documents.

Page 11



35 The Town Council will meet the cost of various administrative Mayoral 
expenses, as determined by the Policy and Finance Committee, being 
in accordance with the Council’s approved budget. 1

GENERAL

36 The Mayor will present certificates to Honorary Burgess recipients, if 
applicable.

37 The Mayor may receive gifts occasionally during his/her term of office. 
These gifts may be of a personal nature in which case they may be 
retained by the Mayor (and need to be declared in accordance with the 
Code of Conduct), but others that are obviously for the Town must be 
handed to the Town Clerk.

38 All guests visiting the White House must be invited to sign the Visitors 
Book and advised that only limited car parking spaces are available.

39 The Mayor and Deputy Mayor should inform the Mayor’s Secretary, as 
early as possible, of any dates when they are not free to undertake 
engagements.

40 The Mayor’s Secretary should be informed of any special 
circumstances that may affect the Mayor’s attendance or enjoyment of 
an engagement e.g. allergies, dietary requirements, disability 
restrictions.

41 Matters regarding protocol or of a general concern to the Mayor can be 
discussed, in the first instance, with the Mayor’s Secretary or the Town 
Clerk

42 The Mayor will operate an account for the use of the Mayor’s Charities. 
The signatories of the account will be the Mayor and the Town Clerk 
who will co-operate in any handover to any successor(s).   
 

43 If any need to interpret this Protocol arises, it should be referred to the 
Town Clerk for a ruling in the first instance and afterwards to the 
relevant Committee.

FUNDRAISING EVENTS

44 As agreed by the Policy and Finance Committee in November 2014, 
the Mayor shall be entitled to three free uses of Town Council owned 
buildings/facilities during each municipal year, for the purposes of 
holding charity fundraising events. This applies only to hire of the 
facility; normal charges would apply for other services such as catering, 
bar, etc. 

45 To avoid the loss of income opportunity, the Mayor shall confirm the 
date of such uses no later than 30 June each year. 

1 To be produced and agreed.

Page 12



46 Should an occasion arise when payment for hire still applies, the 
charges will be at the lower community group rate, where applicable.

47 The Mayor will liaise with the Town Mayor’s Secretary to develop a 
plan of charity fundraising events for the year, as early as possible 
during his/her term of office. This allows sufficient time for booking of 
venues or suppliers, as well as the development of suitable marketing 
material.

48 The number of charity fundraising events held each municipal year will 
vary depending on the availability of each Mayor.  However, it is 
broadly anticipated that no less than six and no more than twelve (one 
per calendar month) events will be hosted by the Mayor during the 
year. 

49 Where there is insufficient budget for marketing of Mayoral fundraising 
events, the expectation is that, should external services be required for 
marketing purposes (e.g. the production of a banner), that these costs 
will be met from the income generated from the event or from the 
Mayoral allowance. 

Approved by the Policy & Finance Committee 16.01.2017
Amendment to Point 49 endorsed by Council 30.01.2017

5 of 5

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



DDEECCLLAARRAATTIIOONN  OOFF  AACCCCEEPPTTAANNCCEE  OOFF  OOFFFFIICCEE  

I, ____________________________________, having been elected 
to the office of Deputy Town Mayor of Leighton-Linslade Town 
Council declare that I take that office upon myself, and will duly and 
faithfully fulfil the duties of it according to the best of my judgement 
and ability.

I undertake to observe the Code of Conduct which is expected of all 
members of Leighton-Linslade Town Council. 

Signed : ___________________________________

Date: _____________________________________

This declaration was made and signed before me.

Signed : ___________________________________

Mark Saccoccio
Proper Officer of the Council                                                                 

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



Page 124

LEIGHTON–LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL

MINUTES OF COUNCIL MEETING

29 APRIL 2019 AT 1930 HOURS

Present:   Councillors  A Brandham 
S Cotter 
A Dodwell 
T Morris
C Palmer
C Perham
G Perham
D Bowater 
S Rahman
E Wallace
K Cursons
S Ward
J M Freeman
F Kharawala
S Jones
C Chambers
R Berry
B Spurr

Also in attendance: M Saccoccio (Town Clerk)
S Sandiford (Head of Democratic and Central 
Services)
Ian Haynes, (Head of Grounds and 
Environmental Services)
Vivien Cannon (Head of Cultural and Economic 
Services)
M Jahn (Committee Officer)

Members of the Public:   1

294 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence had been received and were accepted from Councillors 
D Perham and K Ferguson.

295 DECLARATIONS OF ACCEPTANCE OF OFFICE

Members were asked to declare any interests, and the nature of those interests, 
that they might have in any of the items under consideration at the meeting.

Page 17

Agenda Item 10



Council Meeting                                                         29 APRIL 2019

                                                                                                                   Page 125

No declarations were made and no dispensations had been requested.

296 TOWN MAYOR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS

Councillor C Palmer advised Council that since the last meeting at the end of 
January, he had attended 40 engagements, making a total of 150 during his 
year as Town Mayor, of which two thirds had taken place within the town and 
one third outside the parish. 

Highlights included the visit of Princess Anne to Citizens Advice to recognise 
the work of the volunteers, the Civic Service where the Honorary Burgess 
Award was presented, events at the Croquet Club and the Narrow Gauge 
Railway and the opening of Café in the Park which had received favourable 
feedback from residents of Leighton-Linslade. Events outside the town had 
included a number of Civic Services and events held by Mayors of neighbouring 
towns. 

The Mayor advised that he had hosted several charity fundraising events 
including the Spring Fayre, Quiz, Bingo and a Charity Meal and thanked all 
those who had supported him in organising and attending these. To date, 
approximately £10,000 had been raised for this year’s chosen charities. 

The Mayor thanked Councillor Bowater for deputising for him when required 
and to fellow councillors for their support. 

297 LEADERS ANNOUNCEMENTS

Councillor E Wallace thanked the Mayor for his continued efforts on behalf of 
the Town and local charities and to all the Mayors who had served over the last 
four years of this Council term. They extensively gave their time to represent 
the town of Leighton-Linslade in the region and worked with other groups to   
enhance relationships with the charities and their volunteers and for the benefit 
of the residents of the town.
 
Councillor J M Freeman spoke to Council to thank the Leader, colleagues and 
officers for the service given to him and courtesy shown over the last four years.   

298 QUESTIONS

(a) No questions had been received from members of the public. 
(b) No questions had been received from Councillors. 

299 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

Council received the draft minutes of the previous Council meeting held on 28 
January 2019 for consideration.

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Council meeting held on 28 January 
2019 be approved as a correct record and were signed accordingly. 

Page 18



Council Meeting                                                         29 APRIL 2019

                                                                                                                   Page 126

300        COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Council received the draft minutes of Committee meetings held since the 
Council Meeting on 28 January 2019.

RESOLVED to receive the minutes of the following meetings

(a) Planning & Transport Committee 30 January 2019

Minute reference 446/P – the bollards on amenity land on Soulbury Road 
and Stanbridge Road to prevent car parking should be installed in the next 
few weeks.

(b) Partnership Committee 7 February 2019  

Minute reference 254/LLP regarding the bridge over the railway line (footpath 
68), the Town Clerk had received a letter from Network Rail and a meeting 
would be arranged in due course.

(c) Planning & Transport Committee 20 February 2019
(d) Policy & Finance Committee 25 February 2019 

Minute reference 454/PF– the consultation exercise for a boundary review 
was ongoing.

(e) Grounds & Environmental Services Committee 4 March 2019 

Minute reference 176/GE Shenley Hill Road – Lease: Council gave 
consideration to the recommendation regarding the Lease for Shenley Hill 
Road.  On being put to a vote the recommendation was carried unanimously.

RESOLVED that the lease be signed by two authorised signatories 
Councillor S Jones and Councillor R Berry (Chair and Vice Chair of 
the Committee).

Minute reference 172/GE – a question was raised regarding car parking 
potential at Mentmore by extending on to the grass area especially with the 
expansion of the tennis club and use by the bowls club.  Council agreed to 
bring back to Committee for discussion.

(f) Cultural & Economic Services Committee 11 March 2019

Minute reference 160/CE Sub Committee and Task Group Minutes – a 
question was raised regarding the ground fixings for the gazebos and it was 
confirmed these would be installed once the gas company had completed 
their works. Concerns were raised about the condition of some of the 
previous repairs in the High Street and whether the fixings should be installed 
sooner to enable these repairs to be completed at an earlier date.  

(g) Planning & Transport Committee 13 March 2019

Page 19



Council Meeting                                                         29 APRIL 2019

                                                                                                                   Page 127

(h) Planning & Transport Committee 3 April 2019 
(i) Partnership Committee 11 April 2019 

Minute reference 273/LLP Joint Committee Terms of Reference: Council 
gave consideration to the proposed Joint Terms of Reference and a concern 
was raised regarding the Secretariat point number 1: “either Council can 
administer the Joint Committee, according to their own Standing Orders.  
The Committee will decide annually which Council is to administer the 
Committee”. It was felt that this could be confusing and lead to inconsistency 
over the four year Council term. It was suggested that the Secretariat should 
be decided at the beginning of the four year term for the whole period, rather 
than annually.

It was agreed that this recommendation be put to Central Bedfordshire 
Council for consideration and to defer further consideration to the next 
normal scheduled Town Council Meeting on the 24 June 2019.

No other issues or queries were raised in respect of the proposed Terms of 
Reference.

RECOMMENDED to the Central Bedfordshire General Purposes 
Committee that consideration be given to an amendment to the 
proposed Joint Terms of Reference as follows: that the Secretariat 
should be decided at the beginning of the four year term for the whole 
period, rather than annually.

RESOLVED to defer approval of the Joint Terms of Reference to the 
next Council Meeting on 24 June 2019.  

(j) Policy & Finance Committee 15 April 2019

Minute reference 468/PF General Grant Applications – a question was raised 
regarding how the Café in the Park would affect the voluntary organisations 
selling refreshments at the Summer Band Concerts and whether a grant 
could be considered for these organisations.  

RECOMMENDED to the Policy and Finance Committee to consider 
possible measures to mitigate the potential fundraising impact of the 
amended practice from 2019 in respect of refreshment provision at the 
summer Music in the Park programme of events for local charity and 
voluntary organisations. 

Minute reference 468/PF Operation Dodford Agreement: Council gave 
consideration to the Operation Dodford framework agreement for the year 
commencing 1 April 2019.

RESOLVED to approve the Operation Dodford framework agreement 
for the year commencing 1 April 2019.

Minute reference 469/PF Committee Objectives and Workplan – a question 
was raised as to whether the protocol for Leader of the Council should be 

Page 20



Council Meeting                                                         29 APRIL 2019

                                                                                                                   Page 128

reviewed as it had been adopted in 2011. It was agreed to add this to the 
workplan for the next year and to seek advice from NALC. 

(k) Planning & Transport Committee 24 April 2019

301 TOWN COUNCILLORS 

RESOLVED to note that James Davies ceased to be a member of the Town 
Council on 22 February 2019.

302 ANNUAL REPORT 2018-2019 

Council received the draft Annual Report for 2018-2019 and gave consideration 
to the recommendation made by the Policy and Finance Committee on 15 April 
2019 to approve the draft document (Minute reference 474/PF).  It was noted 
that financial details would be added upon completion of all year-end processes. 

RESOLVED to approve the Town Council Annual report for 2018-2019.

303 STANDING ORDERS 

Council received and considered a report recommending proposed 
amendments to Standing Orders, as agreed by the Standing Orders Task and 
Finish Group and the Policy and Finance Committee. Proposed amendments 
were primarily to incorporate references to new legislation since 2015 and to 
alter the format/numbering to reflect the NALC Model Standing Orders.

RESOLVED to endorse proposed new Standing Orders to reflect changes 
in legislation and in format, in line with the NALC model.

304 CODE OF CONDUCT 

The Council received and considered a report showing proposed amendments 
to the Town Council’s Code of Conduct.

RESOLVED to approve the amendments to the Town Council’s Code of 
Conduct.

305 REPORT FROM CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE COUNCILLORS 

No update report was given by Central Bedfordshire Councillors.

306 PRESENTATION 

A presentation was given to Council by the Town Clerk and Heads of Services 
highlighting the events and successes of the four year Council term, including 
that the council tax had remained the same for the past seven years and the 
face to face consultation with residents had enabled the five year plan 2019-

Page 21



Council Meeting                                                         29 APRIL 2019

                                                                                                                   Page 129

2024 to be formed to provide the blueprint for the new Council.  Grant funding 
continued enabling organisations like Citizens Advice and Leighton-Linslade 
Music Centre to continue and expand their services.  TACTIC centre provided 
much needed services for young people in the town and the Youth Promise 
Grant had given money to organisations to improve their facilities for their clubs.  
The Events Team provided high quality well attended events like the Christmas 
Festival, Spring Fayre and the up and coming Big Lunch and Canal Festival and 
were continuing to review these events and improve on them where possible.   
New ideas for future delivery included the Youth Film Club, Heritage Trail, Town 
Centre Wi-Fi and pigeon management.

The work carried out by the Grounds Team and volunteers throughout the town 
enabled the gain of 11 Green Flag Awards across four locations over the last 
four years, 24 gold, 8 silver gilts and 2 silver awards.  

Thanks were given by The Mayor for the informative presentation and for the 
amazing achievements over the last four years.

RESOLVED to note the information.  

307        EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

 RESOLVED that, under the Public Bodies (Admissions to Meetings) Act 
1960, the public be excluded on the grounds of the confidential nature of 
the business about to be transacted, which involves the likely disclosure 
of exempt information.  The public and press to withdraw from the meeting 
during consideration of detailed discussion regarding Astral Park, Pages 
Park and town council owned land.

308 ASTRAL PARK 

Council received and considered a report in respect of the work carried out so 
far by the Task and Finish Group and that this be continued beyond and into the 
new council administration period.

RESOLVED 

1.1 To endorse the work carried out so far by the Task and Finish 
Group.

1.2 To endorse the Astral Park vision that as a facility its purpose is to 
‘provide a high quality, cost effective and sustainable sports and 
community facility to the benefit of the community at large’.

1.3 That the work of the Task and Finish group continues into the new 
Council administration and until such time as it can arrive at 
proposals to inform future the management of town council assets.

1.4 That all town council assets that are capable of being hired to be 
managed as a single entity.

Page 22



Council Meeting                                                         29 APRIL 2019

                                                                                                                   Page 130

309 PAGES PARK

Council received a report in respect of Pages Park Refurbishment to release 
funds from earmarked reserve to provide contingency sum necessary to realise 
completion of the project.  A vote was taken and the recommendations passed 
(15 in favour, 2 abstentions by Councillors G Perham and S Cursons and 1 
against - Councillor A Brandham).

RESOLVED to endorse the release of up to a maximum of £60,000 from 
earmarked reserve 950/9024 – Grounds and Environmental (£187,948 as at 
31st March 2019) for the purposes of providing a contingency sum 
necessary to realise the refurbishment of the Pages Park Project.

310       TOWN COUNCIL OWNED LAND

Council received and considered a report regarding the proposed sale of 
amenity land. Differing views were expressed. It was proposed and seconded 
that recommendation 1.1, to refuse to sell the land, be approved. On being put 
to the vote, the motion was endorsed (ten in favour and six against).

RESOLVED that the Town Council reject the offer to sell.

The meeting closed at 2120 hours. 

I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A CORRECT AND ACCURATE 
RECORD OF THE MEETING HELD ON 29 APRIL 2019.

Chair 20 May 2019
                   

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



 
 

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL 
 

LEADER of the COUNCIL OVERVIEW 
 

 
Leader of the Council 
 
1 The Annual Council Meeting shall elect a Councillor as Leader of the 

Council in accordance with Standing Orders. Council may, at the 
same time, elect a Deputy Leader. 

 
2 The Leader of the Council may be replaced at any meeting of Full 

Council. Motion to replace the Leader must be notified in the 
Agenda. 

 
3 The Leader of the Council will usually be the Leader of the largest 

group of Councillors. 
 
4 The Leader is the most senior Councillor of the Council politically. 

S/he will lead the decision making process at Councillor level and 
liaise with the Town Clerk on those issues, forward plans and 
matters of policy or strategic direction. The Leader has no legal 
status or civic and ceremonial responsibilities.   

 
5 The Town Clerk may use the Leader as a “sounding board” in 

advance of formal consideration of any matter to assist in gauging 
likely Councillor reaction to a proposal. 

 
LEADER PROTOCOL 
 
Introduction 
 
This protocol aims to ensure that the Leader and the Town Clerk are guided 
by a set of ground-rules designed to maintain high standards of public 
accountability, mutual respect and an understanding of the Council's decision-
making structures. If a Deputy Leader has been elected, this protocol shall 
also apply when the Deputy is acting in place of the Leader. 
 
1. General Principles  
 
1.1 In accordance with the statutory Code of Conduct, the Leader must not 

use Council resources for party political purposes. The Leader must 
uphold the political impartiality of the Town Clerk, and not ask the Town 
Clerk to act in any way which would conflict with the Council’s Officer 
Code of Conduct, local Protocol on Member/Officer relationships, or 
national Conditions of Service.  

  

Page 25

Agenda Item 11



[Type here] 
 

S://Council 2007 Onwards/Administration/Policies and Procedure Documents/Policy Documents/Protocol for Leader 
Revised April 2011  

1.2  The Leader does not have line management responsibilities for the 
Town Clerk, and should not issue management instructions to the 
Town Clerk. 

 
1.3  Where a decision is required following discussion between the Leader 

and the Town Clerk, the matter will be submitted to Council or a 
Committee for consideration, unless the matter is already delegated to 
the Town Clerk in consultation with the Leader. 

 
1.4  Matters wholly within the responsibility of the Town Clerk, or which 

have been delegated  to the Town Clerk without consultation 
requirements, may still be discussed between the Leader and the Town 
Clerk. 

 
1.5  In undertaking their roles, the Leader and Town Clerk should respect 

the following principles : 
 

Principle 1 As a 'visible' and accountable elected representative, with 
defined responsibilities, the Leader will need to be properly briefed on 
all significant aspects of the work of the Council.  The Town Clerk 
should ensure a proper information flow so as to ensure that the 
Leader can effectively “lead”. 

 
Principle 2  Good communications can best be achieved through 
planned and programmed meetings and briefing arrangements. On the 
basis that the Town Clerk should be ensuring that the information 
needs of the Leader are met. The Leader should, in turn, seek to avoid 
making requests for unanticipated briefings. 
 
Principle 3 The Leader (and all Councillors) should channel 
significant requests for information, advice, and other support via the 
Town Clerk (or in his/her absence, the Deputy Town Clerk - in which 
case the Town Clerk will be copied into any requests). Other 
arrangements may apply as agreed and established between the 
Leader and the Town Clerk. The Leader should not approach other 
staff directly with requests for information (except in cases of urgency 
or unavailability of the Town Clerk and his/her Deputy) or seek to 
commission work from individual staff, as this may confuse day-to-day 
line management accountabilities.  

 
Principle 4 The Leader may work with the Town Cerk and the other 
senior managers in the development of policies and programmes.  

 
Principle 5  All Councillors have collective responsibility to the 
Council for the conduct of employment policy, and the Council acts as 
the employing body for all Council staff.  Employment policies, having 
been set by the Council, are implemented via the Town Clerk.  

 
Principle 6 Before carrying out a staff appraisal, the Town Clerk 
should seek the views of The Leader and other Councillors, as 

Page 26



[Type here] 
 

S://Council 2007 Onwards/Administration/Policies and Procedure Documents/Policy Documents/Protocol for Leader 
Revised April 2011  

appropriate, to help inform the appraisal process about the staff 
member’s performance from the Councillors’ perspective.   After an 
appraisal, the Town Clerk should advise the Leader of any issues 
relevant to Councillors. 

 
Principle 7  In relation to the Town Clerk, the Leader should provide 
regular advice and guidance as to the Town Clerk’s performance 
against any objectives and outcomes for the Post Holder, as 
determined by Council.  If there are any performance, capability or 
disciplinary issues concerning the Town Clerk, the Leader may submit 
a report to Council in line with Principle 9 below. 

 
Principle 8  When a report to Committee or Council is being 
prepared, the Leader is entitled to discuss issues with the Town Clerk 
and with other officers concerning the content of such reports and the 
framing of recommendations. Whilst the Leader may wish to make 
suggestions on content and drafting, to achieve clarity of presentation, 
simplify jargon, or better explain issues, the Leader should not attempt 
to edit out or override any content of reports which the Town Clerk or 
other officer feels it is important to put before the Council.  
 
Principle 9 When the Leader (and all Councillors) wish to put forward 
proposals of their own, it is the responsibility of the Councillor (via the 
Town Clerk) to produce a report to the relevant Committee for 
consideration.  The Town Clerk may wish, and has a right, to add 
comments to such reports.   

 
Principle 10 The Town Clerk, managers and other officers exercise 
statutory functions and have individual responsibilities. The Leader 
should understand and respect these roles. 

  
2 The Leader and Fellow Councillors 1 
 
2.1  The distinctive roles of the Leader, Mayor, Committee Chairs and 

Councillors are already well-established at Leighton-Linslade Town 
Council. 

 
2.2  The Leader should ensure s/he consults as necessary with colleagues 

in the early stages of formulating proposals. Committee Chairs, in 
particular, should be consulted on issues relevant to their Committee 
and the Mayor should be involved in any civic related matters or issues 
which may affect the conduct of Council meetings. 

 
 
Adopted by Council on 18 APRIL 2011   

 

                                                
1 The majority of this Protocol will apply to Committee Chairs and all Councillors. 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 28



Committee Structure – approved by Council 27 June 2016

COUNCIL

POLICY & FINANCE

COMMITTEE

PARTNERSHIP

COMMITTEE

GRANTS & AWARDS SUB-

COMMITTEE

POLICE LIAISON

SUB-COMMITTEE

PERSONNEL

SUB-COMMITTEE

DISCIPLINARY,

GRIEVANCE 

& APPEALS

SUB-COMMITTEE

PLANNING & 

TRANSPORT

COMMITTEE

GROUNDS & 

ENVIRONMENTAL

SERVICES

COMMITTEE

COMPLAINTS

COMMITTEE

CULTURAL & 

ECONOMIC 

SERVICES 

COMMITTEE

MARKET SUB-

COMMITTEE

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 15



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



 

S:\Council May 2015 - Onwards\Administration\Policies and Procedures\Administration\Delegation Scheme May 2017.doc 

 

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL 
 

DELEGATION SCHEME 
 
 

1. Delegation to Committees 
 

Except as mentioned below, each Committee shall exercise on behalf of the Council 
the functions assigned to it as set out below.  Committees are not bound to exercise 
delegated powers and may at their discretion refer matters to the Council for 
decisions.  Each Committee is required to submit to the Council a report of its 
proceedings since the previous meeting of the Council. 

 
2. Delegation - Exceptions 
 
 (a) The borrowing of money. 
 
 (b) The levying of a rate. 
 
 (c) The disposal of land, other than lettings for two years or less. 
 
 (d) The introduction of new major policy or a change in the Council's 
  established policy. 
 
 (e) The making of byelaws. 
 
 (f) The purchase of land not provided for, or at a cost in excess of a sum 
  allowed as approved capital. 
 
3. Sub-Committees 
 

Committees may, subject to the concurrence of the Council, appoint Sub-Committees 
and (subject to the foregoing exceptions) such of the Committees' powers and duties 
as the Council may resolve, may be delegated to Sub-Committees.  Each Sub-
Committee is required to submit to the main Committee a report of its proceedings 
since the previous meeting of the Committee. 

 
4. Committee Chairs, Vice Chairs and Officers 

 
It is unlawful to delegate powers to Committee Chairs, Vice Chairs.   
 
Powers may be delegated to Officers (usually the Town Clerk) and these shall be 
exercised within the framework of the Council's established policies.  Power 
delegated to an Officer may be exercised in his/her absence by a designated Deputy 
or by another Officer specifically authorised by the Council. 

 
Expenditure authorities delegated to the Town Clerk are as follows: 
 
 (a) for specific items approved in the budgets within the budget sum 
 
 (b) for no specific items within a standing authority of £2,500. 
 
The exceptions and limitations are: 
 
 (i) single items over £5,000 will require Committee or Council approval 

Page 37



S:\Council May 2015 - Onwards\Administration\Policies and Procedures\Administration\Delegation Scheme May 2017.doc  
 

 
 (ii) all grants to be dealt with by Council 
 
 (iii) all Section 137 expenditure to require approval of Council. 

 
Planning 
 
The Town Clerk shall submit to the following meeting of the Planning and Transport 
Committee, the particulars of every planning application notified to the Council and that, after 
consultation with the Chair of that Committee, only applications deemed to be non-minor will 
be discussed by that Committee.  The formal consultation on minor applications is delegated 
to the Town Clerk. Any Councillor may ask for a minor application to be discussed in full by 
the Committee. 
 
1. Delegated applications include all applications received for consultation purposes 

including all planning applications, advertisement and signs. 
 
2. All delegated decisions, which are recommended for approval, will be detailed, in 

writing, to Members of the Planning and Transport Committee in a report that will be 
tabled on the night of the meeting of that Committee. 

 
3. A list of proposed delegated decisions will be circulated to all Councillors. If a 

Councillor wishes an application to be decided by the Committee, a written request 
must be made to the Town Clerk prior to the meeting.  

 
4. It may be necessary to refer certain planning applications to the Grounds and 

Environmental Services Committee or a joint meeting of the Planning/Grounds and 
Environmental Services Committee for comment. 

 
5. No planning application can be delegated which falls into the following categories : 

(a) To which a written objection from a member of the public has been received by 
the Town Council.  

(b) Any application for more than five dwellings (including flats, apartments and 
maisonettes). 

 
6. The Town Clerk, or his/her nominated officer, must be cognizant of the application – its 

location and the possible planning considerations. 
 

Grounds and Environmental Services – Requests for Use of Parks & Open Spaces 
 

The responsibility is delegated to the Town Clerk to respond to requests for use of the Town 
Council parks and open spaces, in line with the agreed criteria.  
 
Police Liaison Sub-Committee – Operation Dodford Service Level Agreement with 
Bedfordshire Police 
 
The responsibility is delegated to the Town Clerk, in consultation with the Chair of the Police 
Liaison Sub-Committee, to authorise additional policing activity through the Operation 
Dodford service level agreement and associated budget.  
 
 
Adopted by Council 15 May 2017 

Page 38



   

THIS SCHEDULE IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE: PLEASE CHECK THE TOWN COUNCIL WEBSITE FOR 
LATEST INFORMATION:   www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk  
 
Last Updated:  15/11/2018 

 
 

All meetings are held in The White House and commence at 1930 hours, unless otherwise stated 
 

May 2019  
Mon 06 BANK HOLIDAY 
Mon 20 COUNCIL ANNUAL MEETING 
  (Astral Park) 
Wed 22 Planning & Transport Committee 
Thur 23 Market Sub-Committee (1030) 
Mon 27 BANK HOLIDAY 
  
June 2019 
Mon      03 Cultural & Economic Services                     

Committee 
Thur      06 Partnership Committee 
Mon      10         Grounds & Environmental Services 

Committee 
Wed      12 Planning & Transport Committee 
Mon      17 Policy & Finance Committee 
Mon 24 COUNCIL 
 
July 2019 
Mon 01 Personnel Sub-Committee 
Wed      03 Planning & Transport Committee 
Mon 15 Community Safety Sub-Committee 
Wed 24 Planning & Transport Committee 
Mon 29 Policy & Finance Committee 
 
August 2019 
Wed 21 Planning & Transport Committee 
Mon      26 BANK HOLIDAY 
Thur 29 Market Sub-Committee (1030) 
 
September 2019 
Mon 02 Cultural & Economic Services  

Committee 
Thur 05 Partnership Committee 
Mon 09 Grounds & Environmental Services 

Committee  
Mon 16 Policy & Finance Committee 
Wed      18 Planning & Transport Committee 
Mon      30 COUNCIL 
 
October 2019 
Wed  09 Planning & Transport Committee   
Mon 14 Personnel Sub-Committee 
Mon      28 Community Safety Sub Committee 
Wed 30 Planning & Transport Committee 
 
November 2019  
Mon 04 Grants & Awards Sub-Committee 
Mon      18 Policy & Finance Committee 
Wed 20 Planning & Transport Committee 
Thur 21 Market Sub-Committee (1030) 
Thur 28 Partnership Committee 
 
 

December 2019  
Mon 02 Grounds & Environmental Services  

Committee  
Mon 09 Cultural & Economic Services 
  Committee 
Wed 11 Planning & Transport Committee 
 
January 2020 
Mon      06 Personnel Sub-Committee 
Wed 08 Planning & Transport Committee 
Mon  13 Community Safety Sub-Committee  
Mon 20 Policy & Finance Committee 
Mon 27 COUNCIL 
Wed 29 Planning & Transport Committee 
 
February 2020 
Thur  06 Partnership Committee 
Wed 19 Planning & Transport Committee 
Mon 24 Policy & Finance Committee 
Thur 27 Market Sub-Committee (1030) 
 
March 2020 
Mon  02 Grounds & Environmental Services  

Committee 
Mon 09 Cultural & Economic Services 

Committee 
Wed 11 Planning & Transport Committee 
Mon 16 PARISH MEETING   
Mon 23 Personnel Sub-Committee  
 
April 2020 
Wed 01 Planning & Transport Committee 
Mon 06 Community Safety Sub-Committee 
Mon 13 BANK HOLIDAY 
Thur 16 Partnership Committee 
Mon 20 Policy & Finance 
Wed      22 Planning & Transport Committee 
Mon 27 COUNCIL 

 
May 2020 
Mon 04 BANK HOLIDAY 
Mon 11 Grants & Awards Sub Committee 
Mon 18 COUNCIL ANNUAL MEETING 
  (Astral Park) 
Wed 20 Planning & Transport Committee 
Thur 21 Market Sub-Committee (1030) 
Mon 25 BANK HOLIDAY 

Page 39

http://www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 40



 
 

PARTNERSHIP COMMITTEE 
 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 

  
1.  Purpose 
 
1.1  To serve as a partnership forum for all those involved in initiatives impacting on 

the Parish to consult with each other and co-ordinate their activities so as to 
realise their aspirations for the Parish and the town centre. 

 
1.2  To set the broad direction of the partnership, taking into account the needs of the 

town centre’s customers, employees, residents, visitors, traders, property owners 
and developers.  

 
2. Objectives 
 
2.1  Work towards improving the economic, social, environmental and cultural vitality 

of Leighton Buzzard and Linslade. 
 
2.2  Prepare and maintain a Town Centre Strategy and Action Plan to help and 

encourage appropriate town centre and town development, for approval by the 
Town Council and Central Bedfordshire Council. 

 
2.3 To deliver the Big Plan, recognising the context of the Local Development 

Framework and related planning processes including: 

 informing and advising the relevant committees of the local authorities on all 
aspects of their responsibilities for the town centre and its environs; 

 consulting, co-ordinating and communicating the infrastructure needs of 
Leighton Buzzard and Linslade to the relevant local authorities; and 

 working in partnership with relevant bodies to achieve the delivery of new 
infrastructure. 

 
2.4 Co-ordinate the activities of the various town centre service providers and those 

responsible for meeting the needs of the town centre including:  
 identifying appropriate funding opportunities for the furtherance of town 

initiatives; 

 undertaking and co-ordinating marketing and promotional work for the town 
centre; and 

 leading on all matters relating to the physical environment of the Town e.g. 
Christmas lights, floral displays, hanging baskets etc. 

 
2.5  Establish sub-committees and task groups to progress/deliver specific proposals 

in town development strategies. 

Page 41

Agenda Item 16



____________________________________________________________________ 

3. Membership 
 
3.1 The core membership to comprise: 

 5 Central Bedfordshire Council appointed Councillors; and 

 5 Leighton-Linslade Town Council appointed Councillors. 
 

3.2  Representatives of local interest groups will be invited to attend its meetings as 
non-voting members. 

 
3.3 CBC Councillors should be from wards within Leighton-Linslade, or immediately 

adjacent to. 
 
3.4 All Councillors should have the interests of the town as a priority, not their own 

wards. 
 

4. Chairman 
 
4.1 The Chairman and Vice-Chairman shall be elected from and by the Committee’s 

core membership.  
 
4.2 The elected Chairman and Vice-Chairman will hold the post for a period of one 

year, after which they will stand for re-election 
 
5. Secretariat 
 
5.1 Leighton-Linslade Town Council administers the Committee, which is governed 

by the Town Council’s Standing Orders. 
 
6. Decision-making arrangements 
 
6.1 The annual budget shall be developed by the Committee and recommended to 

the Town Council and Central Bedfordshire Council for approval, only where 
Central Bedfordshire Council makes funding available in any financial year. 

 
6.2 Thereafter, the Committee will make decisions at its meetings.  Decisions will be 

made by consensus whenever possible.  However, if no consensus can be 
reached, a majority vote, based on one vote per core member, will carry the 
decision, with the Chair having the casting vote if the vote is equal. 

 
6.3 The Committee will delegate operational decision-making to smaller working 

groups as necessary and appropriate. 
 
 
 
 

Page 42



Appointment of Town Councillors to Outside Bodies

Organisation Town Council Representative(s) 

Arts Forum Gordon Perham

Buzzer Bus (Dial a Ride) Ltd Mark Freeman

Carnival Committee Carol Chambers

Citizens’ Advice Bureau Karen Cursons, Farzana Kharawala 

Cruse Bereavement Care Bedfordshire

Friends of Leighton-Linslade in Bloom Gordon Perham

Home-Start Central Bedfordshire

LB First Farzana Kharawala

LB Narrow Gauge Railway Amanda Dodwell, Ray Berry 

Leighton-Linslade Senior Citizens Association 
(“LINK”)

Farzana Kharawala, Carol Chambers

Macmillan Cancer Support (Leighton-Linslade 
Fundraising Group)

Ray Berry 

Meadow Way Community Association Amanda Dodwell

Music Centre Partnership Steve Jones, Gordon Perham

Music Education Hub Steering Committee Steve Jones

National Association of Local 
Councils/Bedfordshire Association of Town and 
Parish Councils

Tony Morris

Ouzel Valley Park Steering Group Tony Morris, Clive Palmer, 

People, Projects, Partnerships (P3) Clive Palmer

Rushmere Parishes Group Clive Palmer, Amanda Dodwell, 

Sandpit Project Tony Morris, 

Sports Council Karen Cursons, 

The Greensand Trust Tony Morris

Town Twinning Forum Clive Palmer,  Gordon Perham

Voluntary & Community Action South 
Bedfordshire

Page 43

Agenda Item 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 44



S T A T U T O R Y  I N S T R U M E N T S  

2012 No. 965 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT, ENGLAND 

The Parish Councils (General Power of Competence) 
(Prescribed Conditions) Order 2012 

Made - - - - 27th March 2012 

Coming into force in accordance with article 1(1) 

The Secretary of State makes the following Order in exercise of the powers conferred by sections 
8(2) and 235(2) of the Localism Act 2011(a). 

A draft of this Order has been approved by a resolution of each House of Parliament in accordance 
with section 235(6) of that Act. 

Citation, commencement and interpretation 

1.—(1) This Order may be cited as the Parish Councils (General Power of Competence) 
(Prescribed Conditions) Order 2012 and comes into force on the day after the day on which it is 
made. 

(2) In this Order— 
“annual meeting” means a meeting of a parish council held in pursuance of paragraph 7(1) of 
Schedule 12 to the Local Government Act 1972; 
“relevant annual meeting” means an annual meeting that takes place in a year of ordinary 
elections of parish councillors(b). 

Prescribed conditions 

2. The conditions prescribed for the purposes of section 8(2) of the Localism Act 2011 are those 
specified in the Schedule to this Order. 

Transitional provision 

3.—(1) This article applies to a parish council in the circumstances described in paragraph (2). 
(2) The circumstances are that— 

(a) the parish council has passed a resolution under paragraph 1 of the Schedule; and 
(b) at the next relevant annual meeting to be held after the meeting at which that resolution is 

passed, the parish council does not pass another resolution under that paragraph. 
(3) The council shall continue to be an eligible parish council for the purpose of completing any 

activity— 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) 2011 c.20. 
(b) For year of ordinary elections, see section 16 of the Local Government Act 1972. 

Page 45

Agenda Item 18



 2

(a) undertaken in the exercise of the general power, but 
(b) not completed before the day of the meeting referred to in paragraph (2)(b). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 Eric Pickles 
 Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government 
27th March 2012 
 
 

 SCHEDULE Article 2 

Conditions of eligibility 
1. The council has resolved at a meeting of the council and each subsequent relevant annual 

meeting that it meets the conditions in paragraph 2 below. 

2.—(1) At the time a resolution under paragraph 1 is passed — 
(a) the number of members of the council that have been declared to be elected(a), whether 

at ordinary elections or at a by-election, is equal to or greater than two-thirds of the total 
number of members of the council; 

(b) the clerk to the parish council holds— 
(i) the Certificate in Local Council Administration; 

(ii) the Certificate of Higher Education in Local Policy; 
(iii) the Certificate of Higher Education in Local Council Administration; or 
(iv) the first level of the foundation degree in Community Engagement and Governance 

awarded by the University of Gloucestershire or its successor qualifications; and 
(c) the clerk to the parish council has completed the relevant training, unless such training 

was required for the purpose of obtaining a qualification of a description mentioned in 
paragraph (b). 

(2) For the purposes of this paragraph “relevant training” means training— 
(a) in the exercise of the general power; 
(b) provided in accordance with the national training strategy for parish councils adopted by 

the National Association of Local Councils, as revised from time to time. 
 
 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) In relation to declaring a person to be elected, see the Local Elections (Parishes and Communities) (England and Wales) 

Rules 2006 (S.I. 2006/3305), in particular, rules 14 and 50 of the Rules for Conduct of an Election of a Parish or community 
where the Poll is not taken together with Poll at another Election, and rules 14 and 50 of the Rules for Conduct of and 
Election of Councillors for a Parish or Community where the Poll is taken together with Poll at a relevant Election or 
Referendum.   

Page 46



 3

 
EXPLANATORY NOTE 

(This note is not part of the Order) 

This Order prescribes the conditions to be met by a parish council in order for it to be an eligible 
parish council for the purposes of section 8(2) of the Localism Act 2011 (“2011 Act”). An eligible 
parish council is a local authority for the purposes of Chapter 1 of Part 1 of the 2011 Act and so 
has a general power of competence in accordance with section 1 of that Act. 

The conditions are prescribed in the Schedule to the Order and relate to— 

– the council resolving that it meets the other conditions of eligibility; 

– the proportion of councillors that are members of the council as a result of having been declared 
elected following an election, as opposed to being co-opted or appointed; 

– the qualifications of the clerk to the parish council. 

The conditions in paragraph 2 of the Schedule must be met at the time the resolution in paragraph 
1 of the Schedule is passed. If the conditions cease to be met after this time, the council will 
continue to be eligible until the next relevant annual meeting. 

The national training strategy is published by NTS, a partnership of stakeholders led by the 
National Association of Parish Councils, and may be obtained from the association website at 
www.nalc.gov.uk. 

Article 3 sets out the transitional arrangements which apply where a council ceases to be an 
eligible parish council (that is, where it does not pass a resolution at the next relevant annual 
meeting). 

A full impact assessment has not been produced for these Regulations as no impact on the private 
or voluntary sectors is foreseen. 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 Crown copyright 2012 

Printed and published in the UK by The Stationery Office Limited under the authority and superintendence of Carol Tullo, Controller 
of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office and Queen’s Printer of Acts of Parliament. 

Page 47



 
 
£4.00 

 
E3141 03/2012 123141T 19585 

9 780111 523070

ISBN 978-0-11-152307-0

S T A T U T O R Y  I N S T R U M E N T S  

2012 No. 965 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT, ENGLAND 

The Parish Councils (General Power of Competence) 
(Prescribed Conditions) Order 2012 

Page 48


	Agenda
	1 ELECTION OF CHAIR (TOWN MAYOR)
	2 DECLARATION OF ACCEPTANCE OF OFFICE
	6 ELECTION OF VICE CHAIR (DEPUTY TOWN MAYOR)
	7 DECLARATION OF ACCEPTANCE OF OFFICE
	10 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	11 LEADER OF THE COUNCIL
	15 COMMITTEE STRUCTURE, TERMS OF REFERENCE AND SCHEME OF DELEGATION
	ToR Standing Committees
	Delegation Scheme May 2017
	CYCLE OF MEETINGS 2019 -2020  Branded

	16 PARTNERSHIP COMMITTEE
	17 APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES
	18 GENERAL POWER OF COMPETENCE

